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Planned Investigation

The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers is conducting a study at the former Tulalip Backup Ammunition Storage Depot for the purpose of determining if chemical warfare agents are buried at the site.  Two areas comprising over 10 acres have been identified as potential burial areas based on historical records and aerial photograph analysis.
Site History and Description

In 1942, the Government activated the Tulalip Backup Ammunition Storage Depot to alleviate munitions storage problems at the Seattle Port of Embarkation.  Approximately 676 acres of the depot were used for the temporary storage of large quantities of munitions awaiting shipment to overseas destinations and Alaska.  For this purpose, the Government constructed 20 concrete igloo-type storage units and approximately 44 temporary buildings.  Various munitions were stored in these buildings and on railcars on sidings.  Chemical warfare munitions were also stored at the depot, prior to being sent to the ports for shipment overseas.  

The Army also used an additional 1,499 acres of the site surrounding the depot for conducting basic military training.  This training included such subjects as rifle familiarization firing, mines and booby traps, and defense against mechanized attack.  Chemical warfare training was also conducted.  Details on the type of chemical warfare training conducted at the depot are not available but such training typically consisted of the use of gas masks, protective clothing, and decontamination procedures.
After the Second World War, the depot was declared excess and the Tulalip Tribes purchased the land in 1949, including the existing structures.  During the Korean War the U.S. Government again required the property and obtained a lease from the Tulalip Tribes to use the land for munitions storage and military training.  In 1959, the Boeing Company entered into a long-term lease to use portions of the property as an aviation and rocket component testing facility.  The property has since reverted to the Tulalip Tribes.
Historical records identified areas as ground scars or suspect disposal sites, and multiple training ranges and areas on the former Tulalip Backup Ammunition Storage Depot.  The suspected chemical burial area was the only area with documentation to suggest it contained chemical warfare agents.  Based on aerial photographic analysis, a second area has been identified as a possible burial site for chemical warfare agents.
What is Chemical Warfare Materiel?

The Army defines chemical warfare materiel as an item configured as a munition that contains a chemical substance that is intended to kill, injure, or incapacitate a person.  Due to their hazards, prevalence, and military use, chemical agent identification sets are also considered chemical warfare materiel.  By definition, chemical warfare materiel does not include:  riot control agents; chemical herbicides (plant/weed killers); smoke and flame producing items; or soil, water, or other debris contaminated with chemical agents.  

The United States established a program to develop and produce chemical munitions when it entered World War I in 1917.  Following World War I, the United States continued to develop chemical warfare agents and train troops in the use of chemical warfare materiel.  These training programs were expanded during World War II.  Development continued with the capture of German chemical warfare agents and later into the Cold War period of United States history.  

CWM can be generally grouped into three main categories: chemical munitions, Chemical Agent Identification Sets, and bulk CWM containers. Chemical munitions and bulk containers were stored at Tulalip Backup Ammunition Storage Depot, and there is a slight chance they may remain on site. 
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Safe Practices

If something is found:

· Do not touch it (Recognize)
· Note the location and move away (Retreat)

· Call 911 (Report)

Background

The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers has conducted the first nationwide effort to identify, manage, prioritize, and develop cost estimates for future actions at Formerly Used Defense Sites where historical documentation indicates that chemical warfare materiel had been used, produced, stored, and/or tested.  

Formerly Used Defense Sites were used by the military to train Soldiers, Airmen, Sailors, and Marines, as well as to test new weapons and warfare capabilities.  After wartime, many of these properties were no longer needed, and they were cleaned up according to the best practices available at the time and then transferred to other owners.  Congress established the Formerly Used Defense Sites Program in the mid-1980s to restore properties formerly owned by, leased to, or otherwise possessed by the United States and under the jurisdiction of the Secretary of Defense.  The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers is responsible for carrying out the program.  The scope and magnitude of the Formerly Used Defense Sites Program is significant, with more than 9,000 properties identified for potential inclusion. Approximately 100 to 200 of these properties have been identified as suspect chemical warfare materiel sites.     
Who to Call For More Information

The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers wants the public to be a part of study efforts as we work hard to ensure the public’s safety, the safety of on-site workers, and to protect the environment.  For more information about the former Tulalip Backup Ammunition Storage Depot, contact the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Seattle District Public Affairs Office at 206-764-6957 or visit the Formerly Used Defense Sites Program website at:
http://hq.environmental.usace.army.mil/programs/fuds/fuds.html.
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